
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGION 5 

77 WEST JACKSON BOULEVARD 
CHICAGO, IL  60604-3590 

                                        

VIA EMAIL ONLY 

Mr. Jahlpaul Narpaul 
Innovative Chemical Company, Inc. 
7769 95th Street South, 
Cottage Grove, Minnesota 55016-3946 

pnarpaul@iccmn.com 

Consent Agreement and Final Order  
In the Matter of Innovative Chemical Company, Inc. 
Docket Number  

Mr. Narpaul: 

Enclosed please find a copy of a fully executed Consent Agreement and Final Order (CAFO) in 

resolution of the above case.  This document was filed on     with the Regional 

Hearing Clerk. 

The civil penalty in the amount of $28,215 is to be paid in the manner described in paragraphs 

70-71 of the CAFO. Payment is due within 30 calendar days of the filing date.

Thank you for your cooperation in resolving this matter. 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Claudia Niess 
Enforcement Officer 
Pesticides and Toxics Compliance Section 

CLAUDIA 
NIESS

Digitally signed by 
CLAUDIA NIESS 
Date: 2021.11.09 06:58:16 
-06'00'

November 12, 2021
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UNITED ST TES ENVIRONl\IBNTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGIONS 

In the Matter of: ) 
) 

Innovative Chemical Cor oration, Inc. ) 
Cottage Grove, Minmesot ) 

) 
�espondent. ) 

---------+----_) 

Docket No. 

Proceeding to Assess a Civil Penalty 
Under Section 14(a) oJf the Federal 
Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide 
Act, 7 U.S.C. § 136l(a) 

Consent: A:greement and Final Order 
�

1relliminary Stat,�ment 

1. This is an a minL,trative action commenced and concluded under Section 14(a) of

the Federal Insecticide, Fu gicide, and Rodenticide Act (FIFRA), 7 U.S.C. § 136/(a), and 

Sections 22. 13 (b) and 22.1 l(b )(2) and (3) of the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the

Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension of 

Permits (Consolidated Rulis) as codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 22. 

2. The Complainant is the Director of the Enforcement & Compliance Assurance

Division, U.S. Environment! Protection Agency (EPA), Region 5.

3. The Respondent is Innovative Chemical Company, Inc. (Innovative), a

corporation doing business n the State of Minnesota. 

4. Where the p
r

ties agree to settle one or more causes of action before the filing of 

a complaint, the administraive action may be commenced and concluded simultaneously by the

issuance ofa consent agree
T

ent and final order ( CAFO ). 40 C .F .R. § 22.13(b ). 

5. The parties agree that settling this action without the filing of a complaint or the

adjudication of any issue ofjfact or law is in their interest and in the public interest.

6. Respondent onsents to the assessment of the civil penalty specified in this CAFO

and to the tem1s of this C 0. 

Filed:  November 12, 2021  FIFRA-05-2022-0003  U.S. EPA, Region 5   Regional Hearing Clerk
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aiver of

''t. Responden adrnitls the jurisdictional allegations in this C:\FO and neither admits

nor denieii the factual al ions and alleged violations in this CIAFO.

Responden waives its ri61ht to requeslta hearing ers provided at 40 C.F.R.

$ 22.1li(c), arry right to the allegations in this CAFO, ancl its right to appeal this CAFO.

9t. certifies that it is complying with FIITRA, 7 U.S.C. $$ 136 to 136y.

10. Sectio,n 3(a

StatutonggqdlB.egl4&rry Backsround

of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. $ 136a(a) states that no person in any State may

distribute or sell to anv arry pesti<:ide that is nrot registered under Section 3 of FIFRA.

1 1, Section 8(a of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. $ 13t5f(a), stales that the.Ad:ministrator may

prescribe regulations requi ing; prrodur:ens, registrants, and applicants for regristration to maintain

recordsi rnrith respect 1to operatior:Ls and the pesticides and devices produced as the

Administrator deterrnines rreoessary lor the effect,ive enforcement of IIIFRA.

12. Section 12( 1)(l\) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.IC. g 136j(a)(1)(A), states, in perrinentpart,

it is unlawful for any irL arry stilte to distribute or sell to any person arry pesticide that is

3 of FIFI(A,not registe:recl under liecti

13, Section 12(

for any Frerso:n in any state

unlawfill firr any person to

under sect.ion 5, 7, 8, 11 or

14. Section 12( XEi)(i) ,rf liIFRA, 7 U.S.C. g 136j('a)(2XBXi) rstates that it is

1)(Ii) of FIITRA, 7 U.S.C. g 136j(a)(1)(E), slates thatitis unlawtul

dlistribule cr sell to any person any pesticide that is misbranded.

to p:repare, rnaintain, or submit any recordri required by or

9,of FIFFA.

1)(D) of IIIFRA, 7 U.S.C. {i 136(D(1)(D), stares a pesticide is

not bear 1Jre IEPA establishment assiEgred to the establishment in

15. Sectio:n 2(



hich the pesticide was pr duced. See also 40 C.F.R. § 156.I0(a)(l)(v) and (f). 

16.. Section 2( q)( l )(F) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(q)(l )(F), states that a pesticide is 

isbranded if the label do,, not contain directions for use which are necessary for effecting the 

, urpose for which the prod ct is inte:rnded and if complied with, are adequate to protect health 

nd the: environment. See al so 40 C.F .. R. § 156.l0(a)(l)(viii). 

17. Section 2(q) l )(G) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(q)(l)(G), states that a pesticide is

1 is branded if the label doe not contain a warning or caution statement which may be necessary 

, nd if complied with, toget er with any other requirements imposed under Section 3( d) of 

IFRA, is adequate to prot ct health and the enviromnent. See also 40 C.lF.R. § 156.IO(a)( l )(vii). 

18. Section 2(q) 2)(C)(iv) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(q)(2)(C)(iv), states a pesticide is

is branded if its label does not bear the EPA registration number assigned to the pesticide. See 

so 40 C.F.R. § 156.l0(a)( )(iv) and (e). 

19. 40 C.F.R. § 69.2 states, in pertinent part, that all producers of pesticides shall

aintain records showing t e product name and EPA Registration Numbc:r of all pesticides 

oduced. 

20. The term "p rson" means "any individual, partnership, association, corporation,

c any organized group of p rsons whether incorporated or not." 7 U.S.C. § 136(s). 

21. The term "di tribute or sell" means "to distribute, sell, offer for sale, hold for

c stributionJ hold for sale, h I ld for shipment, ship, deliver for shipment, release for shipment, or 

r eive lid (having so recei ed) deliver or offer to deliver." 7 U.S.C. § 136(gg). 

22. A "pesticide' means, among other things, any substance or mixture of substances

ir ended for preventing, des ,roying, repellling, or mitigating any pest. 7 U.S.C. § 136(u). 

23. A "pest" mea s any insect, rodent, nematode, fongus, weed, or any other form of

3 



rrestri1al or aquatic plant o animal life or vims, bacteria, or other micro-organism which the 

dministrator of U.S. EPA declares to be a pest under Section 25(c)(l) ofFIFRA. 7 U.S.C. 

136(t). 

24. A "producer' means a person who manufactures, prepares, compounds,

p opagates, or processes an. pesticide or active ingredient used in producilng a pesticide. 

�. U.S.C[ § 136(w). 

25. An "establis ent" means any place where a pesticide, device or active

1 gredient used in producin, a pesticide is produced, or held, for distribution or sale. 7 U.S.C. 

136(dd). 

26. Section 14(a (1) ofFIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136l(a)(l), states that any registrant,

,, mmercial, applicator, who esaler, dealer, retailer or other distributor who violates any provision 

o FIFRA may be assessed civil penalty by EPA of not more than $7,500 for each offense that

j curred after Januruy 12, 2 09 through November 2, 2
,
015. 

�
he Federal Civil Penalties 

1 flat10n
1 
Adjustment Act of 1990, as amended through 2015, 28 U.S.C. § 2461, and its 

plemepting regulations at 40 C.F.R. Part 19, increased the amount that can be assessed to 

$ 0,528 for each offense oc 1 urring after November 2, 2015 and assessed after December 23, 

2 20. See 85 Fed. Reg. 838 8 (Decemlber 23, 2020). 

F ctlllal Alie a1uions and Alleged Violations 

27. Respondent i a '·'person" as defined at Section 2(s) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(s).

2r The Respond nt is a "producer" as defined at Section 2(w) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C.

§ 36(w).

29. At all times r levant to this CAFO, Respondent owned or operated a place of

lJl siness located at 7769 95 Street South, Cottage Grove, Minnesota 55016-3946 (facility). 

4 



30. At all times

establisllnent. identifi ed as

pesticides were produ,oed.

31. On or erbout

of Agriculture and au

Resporrdent' rii faci litl'.

32. On or arbout

EPA Reg. No. 1839-166.

33. On or arbout

NDC-1[28, EIPA Reg. No.

34. On or about

Notice of Sullplemental Di

Distribrrrtion) to the EIPA

35. The Notice

of BTC E85 NDC-12[1. EP

2i6. The Notice

fbr BTC 885I,{DC-128. EP

37,, Prot6grS Qu

38 Prot6gri Qua

term is definerd in Section

39" During the

and affiidavits regarding

le'yant to this CAI-O, Respondent's lacility was an EPA registered

P,\ Ilstablislnment Number (EPA Est. No.) 71841-MN-1, where

11,1,2019, an inspector employed by the M.innesota Department

to condluc'linspections under FIFFA condrrcted an inspection at

Quarntrum Q, EPA Reg. No. 11339-166-71841

i?-,I9')3, EPA conditionally registered BlfC 885 NDC-128,

ber.3, it0T2, the EPA accepted an updated label for BTC 885

83!)-166.

ber 19, 1998, Respondent and the regisrtrant submitted a

trilbuttion of zr Registered Pesticide Product (\fotice of Supplemental

BTC 885 NDC-128, EPA Reg.l\lo. 1839-166.

supplemental Distribution identif,red Respondent as the distributor

Rerg. No. 18:19-166.

Surpplem r:ntal Distribution identifiedl the distr:ibutor product name

Reg. No. 1ti39-166, as Prot6g6 Quantum Q).

tum Q is assigned EPA.Reg. No. 18i39-166-'7t84L

tum Q, E)PA Reg. No. 1839-166,-7I841, is a "pesticide" as that

u) of'FIFJi,A.

l9 inr;pection, the inspector collected shipping records, bin labels

Quantrrm Q, EPA lleg. No. 1839-166-"tr1841.



40. The bin I

representations ofthe

about Januarry I7,2019

4.1. The bin

bear the EP,A, establi

42. The bin

bear the EP,A. registration

43. The bin la

collected, du.ring the i

December 3,2012,

lbr use.

44.

Q, EP'A Regr;.

45.

Quantum (lt,

No. 1tt39-1

EPA Ileg.

46. Durins the

I'rot6gr5 Quarntum Q, EP

47. The March

1839 -166-'7 1 84 1, faihd to

,48.

arnd affidavits

During the

for the

collectod tluring the inspection were true and accurate

ide and the associated labels that u,ere relea.secl for shipment on or

fiebruary 14,2019.

ls :[or Prot6g;6 Quantum Q, EPA Rerg. No. ItJ3g-166-71841, did not

number of the establishLment in which the pesbicide was produced.

for Prot6g6 Quantum Q, EPA Reg. No. 11139'-166-71g41, did not

rnber assigned to the E:sticide.

ls lbr Prort6g6 Quantum Q, EPA Reg. No. 1839-166-7Ig4I

ion did not match the label languagr; on the accepted label, dated

ng but not lirnited to the precautionarryr statem.enl.s and the directions

On or about anua.ry l'7,2:,019, Resporrdent distributed or soldlprot6g6 euantum
,]tlti4I,to 

one of its customers.

On or about | 4, 2019, Respondent distributed or sold prot6g6

1839-l(i6-7184 [, to one of its c;ustomers.

Recorrdkeeping

1!) irrspection, the inspector collected productiorr records for

Reg. No. l8:i9 -16'6-7 1841.

, ;l0lt8 prod*ction recordlfor prot6g6 euantunr e, EpA Reg. No.

l'de the recluired EPA Registration Number of the pesticide.

Prot6g(! Quatenary Sanitizer

19 irrspectic,n, tho inspector collected shippirrg records, a bin label,

IDrot6g6 Q,uatenary Sanitizer.



Protele Qu tenary Sanitizer is a pesticide (based on the claim that it is a 

sanitizer), as defined by Sec ion 2(u) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 136(u). 

ro p , I , Q s . . . . d . . l . d b ., . rotege u tenary amttzer 1s not reg1stere as a pestlcH e, as reqmre y 

Section 3(a) ofFIFRl 7 U. .C. § 136a(a).

51. The bi, 1 labe collected during the inspection was a true and accurate

representations of the produ t and the associated labels that were released for shipment on or 

about February 14, 2(])19. 

52. On or �bout , ebrrnuy 14, 2019, Respondent distributed or sold Protege

Quatenary Sanitizet, to on of its customers. J Count 1 

53. The ptcedi g paragraphs are incorporated by reference.

54. On or 
1

about anuaiy 17, 2019, respondent distributed or solld Protege Quantum

Q, EPA Reg. :No. 1819-166 71841, to one of its customers, that was misbranded as that term is 

defined at Sections 2r:i_)(l)( ), (F), (G), and 2(q)(2)(C)(iv), 7 U.S.C. §§ 2(q)(l)(D), (F), (G), and 

2( q)(2)(C)(iv), becau

[

e the abel on the container did not include the EPA Establishment number, 

the EPA Regi1-;tration Num er and did not contain language required under the Precautionary 

Statemers and Direc
r
ions fi r Use. 

55. Resplndent s distributiion or sale of Pirotege Quantum Q, EPA Reg. No. 1839-

166-71841, constitutr an u lawful act pursuant to Section 12(a)(l )(E) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 

136j(a)(l)(E). . 

I 56. Respo
r
dent' violation of Section 12(a)(l)(E) ofFIFRA, 7 U.S.C. § 

136j(a)(l)(E), subjecr the 
i

espondent to the issuance of an Administrative Complaint assessing 

a civil penalty under Sectio, 14(a) of the FIFRA, 7 U..S.C. § 136/(a). 

7 



Q, EPr| Reg. No. 1

define<l at Ser;tions

2(q)(2)(c)(iv),

the EP.{ Regiistrati

Statem0nts and Di

166-71841, crrnstitu

136j(a)(1)(E)

60"

t36j(a)(t)(E)

a civil penalt5,'under

61.

62.

number for Pnot6g6

the pestfcide cons

136j(a)(ip)(B)(i).

,qJ.

I 36j(a)(p)(B)(i), subj

assessing a civil iSer:tion 14(a) of the FIFRA, 7lJ.S.c. g 136(a).

Count 2

57. The 'paragraphrs are incorporated by rellerence.

58. On Febnrary 14,2019, respondent distrilbuted or sold prot6g6 euantum

-718'll, to one of its customers, that was misbranded as that terrn is

), (ll), (G), and 2(qx2)(C)(iv), 7 U.S.C. $$ ,l(qx1)(D), (F), (G), and

label on the c:ontainer did not include the Ep,Ar Establishment number.

r an.d diclnot contain language requ.ired undrer the precautionary

Usre.

5e. R 's dis'tributiorr or sale of Prot6g6 Quantum Qr, EpA Reg. No. 1g39-

I act pursuant to Section 1:l(a)(1)(E) ol'FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. $

violation. o1'Section 12(a)(1)(E) of JFIFRA, ,/ U.S.C. $

t to the issuance of an Administrati,,ie Complaint assessing

The p

1,4(a) of the FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. g 136(a).

Count 3

praragraphs are incorporated by reference.

On Lt29,2018, Respondent's failure to include the EpA registration

Q, EPz\ tri.eg. No. 1839-166-7 1 841 , in its production records for

lawtul act trrursuant to Section l2(a)(2)(B)(i) ofFIFRA, 7 U.S.C. $

violation of Section I2(a)(Z)(B)(i) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. $

Respondr:nt to the issuance of an Aclministrative Complaint

,19-l

q)(1

lons

l;s the

iabout



Quatentry Sarnitize

lJ.S.C. {i 136j(aXlX

q7. Respr

136j(axtXA), subjer

a civil nfnalty under

18. 
Sectic

consider the si:ze of tl

oontinuo in business,

under FntRA.

.tP. Based

1,4@)@) of FIITRA ar

Itungicid]e, andl Roder

approprifte perralty tr

1'P. Withit

Ji28,2l 5 pivil trr,enalty

Count 4

piaragraphs are incorporated by reference.

eb,ruaryl4, 2019, responclent distributed or so'ld an unregistered

lSanitizer, to one of its customers.

distribution or sale of anL unregistered pesticide, Prot6g6

ru-tes an unlawful act pursuant to Section 12GD(lXA) of FIFRA, 7

violaLtion of Section 12(a)(1)(A) of FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. $

to the issuance of an Administrativ'e Complaint assessing

lrl'(a.) of the FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. g 136(a).

([y!!!9;ralfv and Other Relief

I4(a 4) of'FIFRA, 7 U.S.C. $ 136(a)(a), requires rthe Administrator to

of the person charged, the effitct on the person's ability to

glav:ity of the violation, when assessing an aclmi.nistrative penalty

an llua.tion of the facts alleged in this CAFO, the llactors in Section

EPA s finfbrcement Response Policy for the Federal Insecticide,

, dated December 2001), ComplainLant has cletermined the

settle

30 da

isi ar:tion is 528.215.

a,ftor the efFective date of this CAFO, Respondent must pay a

FIlr'RA violations. Resporndent must pay the prsnilty by electronic

'otl'reasurer, rUnited States of America," and s,ont to:

Federal Reserve Bank of New York
A.Bl\ No. 0111030004

the

fi,rnds trefsfer, pa



Account ]tlo. 68010727
SIVIFT address FRNYUS33
il3 Liberty Street
Nerw York, New York 10045
liiold Tag 4200 of the lredwire message should read:
"D 6 8 0 1 0:/ 27 Environrnental Protection A6;ency"

on field of the electronic funds transfer, state "Innovative chemical

number of this CAFO.

must send a rrotice of payment that states Respondent's name and the

EP at the follov,ing addresses when it pays the penalty:

I l{earing Clerk

ly is not dsductible for federal tax purposes.

t dloes not pay the civil penalty in a timely manner, EpA may refer

rney oral who tyill recover such amount by action in the appropriate

court Section, 1a(a)(5) of FIFRA, T Li.S.C. g 136(a)(5). The

of the civil penalty are nLot reviewable in a collection

1 C.F.R. $ 901.9, Respondent must pray the following on any amount

terest will rpcrue on any amount overdue from the date payment

b)'the Secretary of the Treasury. Responden.t must pay a $15

thiat any porl;ion of the penalty is more than 30 days past due. In

Niessia

v3" rf
the mat{err to rlhe A

United States distri

validi8'i amount and



radditiorrp y a t5 percerrt per year penalty on any princip,al amount 90 days past

,due.

Gt'neral Provisions

the Standing Order Authorizing E-Mail Serrvioe of Orders and

tCther Dtb,cuments therRegional Administrator or Regional Judicial Officer under the

tConsoli4ated ]lules, ated

irt the fcrflowirrg vali

idhi ( ;[or Conrplainant), arrd Mr. Jahlpaul Narprau.[at

(for ). The parties waive throir rright to service by the methods

5 22.

e-

'lut. rhis

'',,iolatio4s and facts a

appropniprte inj unctiv

78. This

and othef appli.cable

.,,p. 
This

fi]r F'IFJRA.

ttp. The

8i[. Each

sign for 
$re 

parrty

8,?. Each

8p, This

arch2'7,2015, the parties conseilt to service of tlhis CAFO by e-mail

acldresses for their resper:tive representatives: Ms. Nidhi O'Meara at

[vr:s only .Respondent's liabilify for federal civil penalties for the

Jteged this CAFO,

o n,ot affec't the right of EPA or the United litates to pursue

equitable relief or criminal sanctions for any violations of law.

not affect;Respondent's responsibility to comply with FIFRA

state, and loc:al laws.

a"ftnal orderr" for purposes of EllA's Enforcement Response

CAFO bind Respondent, its successors, and assigns.

igrring this appeement certifies thal he or she tras the authoritv to

she represents and to birrd that party to its terrms.

tr: bear i1:s own costs and attorney's fees, in this action.

itrrtes the entire agreement between the partiers.
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In the Matter of: 

Innovative Chemical Co p:any, Inc. 

Respondent, 

Date JahlPauk a aul, President 
Innowffive Chemical Company, Inc. 
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In the Matter of: 

Innovative Chemical Co pany, Inc .. 

United States Environme tal Protection Ag1ency, Complainant 

Date Michael D. Harris, Director 

Enforcement & Compliance Assurance Division 

13 

11/8/21
Harris, 
Michael

Digitally signed by Harris, 
Michael 
Date: 2021.11.08 12:27:05 
-06'00'



In the M�lltter of: 
Innovative C lemical Co pany, Inc. 
Docket No. 

Final Order 

This Consent Agreement a d Final Order, as a.greed to by the parties, shall become effective 
immediately u�on filing w,th the Regiornal Hearing Clerk. This Final Order concludes this 
proceeding pur uant to 40 C.F.R. §§ 22. l 8 and 22.31. IT IS SO ORDERED. 

Date Ann L. Coyle 
Regional Judicial Officer 
United States Environmental Protection Agency 
Region 5 

14 

ANN COYLE
Digitally signed by ANN COYLE 
Date: 2021.11.10 11:52:23 
-06'00'
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Consent Agreement and Final Order 
In the Matter of: Innovative Chemical Company, Inc. 
Docket Number:  
 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 
 
I certify that I served a true and correct copy of the foregoing Consent Agreement and Final 

Order, docket number     , which was filed on    , in the 

following manner to the following addressees: 

 
    
Copy by E-mail to   Ms. Nidhi K. O’Meara 
Attorney for Complainant:  omeara.nidhi@epa.gov 
 
Copy by E-mail to   Mr. Jahlpaul Narpaul 
Attorney for Respondent:  pnarpaul@iccmn.com 
 
Copy by E-mail to   Ms. Ann Coyle 
Regional Judicial Officer:  coyle.ann@epa.gov 
  

 
      
Dated:                                              _____________________________________                                                                                                                                                           
     LaDawn Whitehead 
     Regional Hearing Clerk  

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5 
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FIFRA-05-2022-0003 November 12, 2021
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